
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Memorandum 
 
TO:   All Members of the CMCOG Transportation Subcommittee 
 
FROM:  Paul Livingston, Chairperson 
 
DATE:   February 2, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Next Meeting:  February 9, 2023    

 

 
Please be advised that the business of the CMCOG Transportation Subcommittee will be conducted on 
Thursday, February 9th, at 12:00 p.m. in the CMCOG Virtual Conference Room.  Enclosed, please find an 
agenda and support materials for your review. 
 
Please note that this meeting will be held virtually using a Zoom platform.  The zoom link can be found 
on the attached agenda. 
 
Please be advised that in order for the Subcommittee to conduct business, a quorum of three (3) out of 
the six (6) local governments or appointed members must be present.  Delays in conducting business may 
result in delays to the flow of funding to CMCOG for carrying out transportation planning activities, so 
please don’t forget to mark your calendars. 
 
If you have any questions or need any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact Reginald 
Simmons of the CMCOG staff.  Reginald can be reached at 803-744-5133 or by email at 
rsimmons@centralmidlands.org.  Thank you for your time, dedication, and service as I look forward to seeing 
each of you on February 9th.    
 
Enclosures 
 
 
 
 
 

 
E:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Transportation Subcommittee Meetings\Calendar Year 2023 Meetings\2-9-23\Transportation Subcommittee Meeting - February 2, 2023-Notice Only.doc 

 
 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

 



E:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Transportation Subcommittee Meetings\Calendar Year 2023 Meetings\2-9-23\Transportation Subcommittee February 9, 2023 - Agenda Only.doc 

AGENDA 
 

TRANSPORTATION SUBCOMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2023 
 

12:00 PM TO 1:00 PM  
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81684104127?pwd=SzNRdGZrNzIxeFNBeGE2dXB6ZnZzdz09  
Meeting ID: 816 8410 4127 Passcode: 396703  Dial-In Number (646) 558 8656  

 
OVERALL AGENDA  

 
1.    Welcome, Introductions, and Call to Order ......................................  Paul Livingston 

 
2.     Invocation............................................................................................................... Open 
 
3.    Determination of a Quorum ....................................................................  Entire Group 

 
4.    Approval of the November 10, 2022 Meeting Minutes ..........................Entire Group 

    (Enclosure 1) 
 
5. Project Updates .................................................................................................. SCDOT 

SCDOT is currently managing various highway, intersection, interstate, and bridge projects 
throughout our planning region.  SCDOT will provide the latest status updates. 

6. 2045 LRTP Amendment – 2022 STAMP System Performance Report ........ SCDOT 
The SCDOT – Office of Planning has completed the 2022 STAMP System Performance 
Report that reflects SCDOT’s progress towards statewide performance measures that are 
included in the Strategic 10-Year Asset Management Plan (STAMP). This report is created 
on a biennial basis in conjunction with the submittal of performance measures and the 
progress made towards those targets.  For the 2022 System Performance Report, the agency 
has wrapped up the first performance period (2018-2021), and has set baseline, 2-year and 
4-year targets for the second performance period (2022-2025).  This report is part of federal 
regulatory requirement 23 CFR 450.324 (f) (3-4). (Enclosure 2) 

 
7. 2020 – 2027 TIP Amendment – Julius Felder Phase III Sidewalk ......... R. Simmons 

The City of Cayce is in the process of completing COATS project P038442 – Julius Felder 
Street phase III sidewalk project (from Hemlock to Frink Street). Due to an increase in right 
of way and construction cost, additional funding is needed to complete this project.   Staff 
will request for additional $250K be added to complete this project.  (Enclosure 3)   
 

8. 2020 – 2027 TIP Amendment – Corley Mill Road ................................... R. Simmons 
The Central Midlands Council of Governments’ staff requests approval to amend the 2020 – 
2027 Transportation Improvement Program to add $250K to conduct a feasibility analysis 
for the Corley Mill Road Corridor.  This analysis will be conducted as part of the SCDOT 
Feasibility Report.  (Enclosure 4)   
 

9. Old/New Business .................................................................................. Paul Livingston 
 

10. Public Comments ..................................................................................................  Open 
 

11. Adjourn .................................................................................................  Paul Livingston 

ACTION 

ACTION 

ACTION 

ACTION 



1 
 

E:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Transportation Subcommittee Meetings\Calendar Year 2023 Meetings\2-9-23\Enclosure 1 -November 10, 2022 Minutes.doc 

MEETING SUMMARY 
 

Transportation Subcommittee 
 

November 10, 2022 
 
 

Organization    Members Present    Others Attending  
              
Richland County   Paul Livingston (CHAIR) 
 
Town of Lexington:   Steve MacDougall  
 
Kershaw County:   Julian Burns 
 
Lexington County:        Holland Leger  
      
The COMET:         Michelle Ransom 
 
SCDOT:         Erin Porter 
          Diane Lackey 

Jim Walden 
 
FHWA:          Mark Pleasant 
           
CMCOG Staff:         Reginald Simmons 
          Ben Mauldin 
 
Guest:          Roland Bart 
           
              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Enclosure 1 



2 
 

E:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Transportation Subcommittee Meetings\Calendar Year 2023 Meetings\2-9-23\Enclosure 1 -November 10, 2022 Minutes.doc 

1. Welcome, Introductions, and Call to Order 
 

Paul Livingston welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. 
 

2. Invocation 
 
Ben Mauldin gave the invocation.  
 

3. Determination of a Quorum 
 
It was determined that a quorum was present. 
 

4. Approval of the September 8, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
 
A motion was made by Julian Burns to approve the minutes of September 8, 2022. The motion was 
seconded by Steve MacDougall. All were in favor and the minutes were approved.  
 

5. 2045 LRTP Amendment – Setting the Safety Performance Measures 

Reginald Simmons requested a recommendation of approval to adopt SCDOT’s Safety Performance 
Measures.  Erin Porter of SCDOT noted that per federal requirements, performance measures must be 
set in seven categories to meet the national goals.  SCDOT was required to evaluate and report on safety 
targets for the five required measures by August 31, 2022.  This action starts the 180-day clock for 
CMCOG to take action to evaluate and set regionally specific targets or to accept and support the state’s 
targets. Through a coordinated effort with COGs and MPOs, SCDOT presented for the following 2019 
– 2023 Safety Targets for consideration: 
 
 
      
 
 
 
 
There was a brief discussion. 
 
MOTION, approved  
At this time, a motion was made by Steve MacDougall to amend the 2045 Long Range Transportation 
Plan to add the SCDOT 2019 – 2023 Safety Performance Measures.  The motion was seconded by 
Paul Livingston.  All were in favor and the motion was approved. 
 

6. 2020 – 2027 TIP Amendment – Guideshare Increase 
 

Reginald Simmons requested a recommendation of approval to amend the 2020 – 2027 TIP to add 
$2,725,326 million in new guideshare funds to the existing total beginning in FY 2023.  The South 
Carolina Department of Transportation Commission approved an increase to the Guideshare funding 
allocation to MPOs and COGs. The funding was increased from $164 million to $188 million beginning 

Total Number of Fatalities 1119 
Fatality Rate per 100 Million Vehicle Miles Traveled 1.940 
Total Number of Serious Injuries 2,868 
Serious Injury Rate per 100 Million Vehicle Miles Traveled  4.960 
Total Number of Non-motorized Fatalities and Serious Injuries 485 



3 
 

E:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Transportation Subcommittee Meetings\Calendar Year 2023 Meetings\2-9-23\Enclosure 1 -November 10, 2022 Minutes.doc 

in federal fiscal year 2023. The COATS MPO received $2,725,326 in new funding as part of this 
increase. Mr. Simmons requested to add this new funding to our 2020 – 2027 TIP. 
 
MOTION, approved  
At this time, a motion was made by Julian Burns to amend the 2020 – 2027 TIP to add $2,725,326 
million in new guideshare funds to our existing guideshare beginning in FY 2023.  The motion was 
seconded by Steve MacDougall.  All were in favor and the motion was approved. 

 
7. Resolution to Apply for Federal and State Grants 

 
Reginald Simmons requested approval to adopt a resolution that will allow the Executive Director to 
apply for and execute federal and state grants.  CMCOG receives grant opportunities for FHWA, FTA, 
and SCDOT.  CMCOG uses these grant funds to develop and implement transportation planning 
projects.  These grants are also used to support the transportation planning staff.  Projects identified with 
these grant funds are included in the COG and/or MPO UPWP and/or TIP. 
 
MOTION, approved  
At this time a motion was made by Julian Burns to adopt the Resolution for the Executive Director to 
apply for and execute Federal and State Grant opportunities.  The motion was seconded by Steve 
MacDougall. All were in favor and the motion was approved. 
 

8. Old/New Business 
 
There were none. 
 

9. Public Comments 
 

There were none. 
 

10. Adjourn 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:30 p.m. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Memorandum 
 
TO:   All Members of the CMCOG Transportation Subcommittee 
 
FROM:  Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director 
 
DATE:   February 2, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  2045 LRTP Amendment:  2022 STAMP System Performance Report 

 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
The Central Midlands Council of Governments’ staff requests a recommendation of approval to amend the 
2045 Long Range Transportation Plan to add the 2022 STAMP System Performance Report. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The SCDOT – Office of Planning has completed the 2022 STAMP System Performance Report that reflects 
SCDOT’s progress towards statewide performance measures that are included in the Strategic 10-Year Asset 
Management Plan (STAMP). This report is created on a biennial basis in conjunction with the submittal of 
performance measures and the progress made towards those targets.  For the 2022 System Performance 
Report, the agency has wrapped up the first performance period (2018-2021), and has set baseline, 2-year 
and 4-year targets for the second performance period (2022-2025).  This report is part of federal regulatory 
requirement 23 CFR 450.324 (f) (3-4). 
 
Through the federal rulemaking process, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) is requiring state 
DOTs and MPOs (and by extension the South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) is requiring 
COGs) to monitor the transportation system using specific performance measures. These measures are 
associated with the national goal areas prescribed in MAP-21 and the FAST Act. The following System 
Performance Report describes these national goal areas, rulemakings, performance areas, and prescribed 
measures. Performance measures have been identified for highway systems, including a set of measures to 
assess progress toward achieving the goals of the Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) Program. The 
requirements and targets of these measures and tools to calculate them are summarized in this report.  
 
ATTACHMENT 
2022 STAMP System Performance Report 
 
 
 
 
 
E:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Transportation Subcommittee Meetings\Calendar Year 2023 Meetings\2-9-23\Enclosure 2 - 2022 STAMP System Performance Report Cover.doc 
 
 
 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

 

Enclosure 2 



 Date: February 1, 2023 

CFR 450.324(f)(3-4) 



 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

2 
 

 
South Carolina Department of Transportation 

STAMP System Performance Report 2022 
Full Performance Period Progress (FPP) Results of the 1st Performance Period (2018-2021) and 

Baseline Performance Period (BPP) of the 2nd Performance Period (2022-2025) 

 

Through the federal rulemaking process, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) is requiring state 
DOTs and MPOs (and by extension the South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) is requiring 
COGs) to monitor the transportation system using specific performance measures.  These measures are 
associated with the national goal areas prescribed in MAP-21 and the FAST Act. The following System 
Performance Report describes these national goal areas, rulemakings, performance areas, and prescribed 
measures.  Performance measures have been identified for highway systems, including a set of measures 
to assess progress toward achieving the goals of the Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) Program. 
The requirements and targets of these measures and tools to calculate them are summarized in this 
report. 
 
This System Performance Report presents the baseline, performance/condition measures, targets and the 
progress made towards achieving those targets.  These performance measures are a part of SCDOT’s 
Strategic Ten-Year Asset Management Plan (STAMP).  SCDOT’s STAMP has been developed in a 
collaborative effort with South Carolina’s Division Office of the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA).  
The plan has been designed to not only satisfy federal rulemaking, but to transcend these requirements 
by setting performance estimates for all state maintained roads and bridges.  By clearly identifying the 
needs of South Carolina’s transportation infrastructure, the STAMP has provided SCDOT a platform to 
communicate existing infrastructure conditions and project constrained performance targets for SCDOT’s 
physical assets over the next decade.  The STAMP is an all-inclusive document that houses the Strategic 
Plan, Ten-Year Plan (2018-2027), Asset Management Plan (2022-2032) and Performance Measures.  The 
timelines and horizons are illustrated below in Figure 1.   
 

 
Figure 1. STAMP Timelines and Horizons 
 



 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

3 
 

In 2017, The General Assembly passed legislation (the South Carolina Infrastructure and Economic 
Development reform Act (Act 40)) to increase the State gas tax by (12) twelve cents by phasing in the 
increase at (2) two cents per year for (6) six years. These funds are deposited into a new trust fund called 
the Infrastructure Maintenance Trust Fund (IMTF).  In addition to state funding, SCDOT has received an 
increase of federal funding through the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) and recurring 
matching state funds.  These new revenues, coupled with other Federal and State funds and one-time 
appropriations, form the financial foundation of SCDOT's Ten-Year Plan and performance targets. For the 
first time in 30 years, the South Carolina Department of Transportation has been provided with an 
increased and sustainable revenue stream. The additional funding gives the agency the opportunity to 
make gradual, but real and significant strides toward bringing the highway system back from three 
decades of neglect.   
 
The SCDOT’s Strategic Plan forms the guiding principles of the agency’s Investment Strategies, focusing 
on the maintenance, preservation and safety of the existing transportation infrastructure, directing 
investments of highway systems and priority networks, integrating risk-based prioritization, improving 
safety, advancing lifecycle cost in investment programming and enhancing mobility.  The three major goals 
of the Strategic Plan are: 
 

SCDOT Strategic Plan Goals 
 

 
 
Figure 2. Strategic Plan Goals 
 
 
 

Improve Safety Programs and Outcomes in Our High Risk Areas

Maintain and Preserve Our Existing Transportation 
Infrastructure

Improve Program Delivery to Increase the Efficiency and 
Reliability of Our Road and Bridge Network



 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

4 
 

The Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) surface transportation legislation established 
National Goals and a performance and outcome based program.  As part of the program federally 
established performance measures are set and those targets shall be monitored for progress.  There is 
alignment between SCDOT’s Strategic Plan Goals and the MAP-21 National Goals.  The MAP-21 National 
Goals are as follows: 
   
MAP-21 National Goals 
 

 Safety - To achieve a significant reduction in traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads  

 Infrastructure Condition - To maintain the highway infrastructure asset system in a state of good 
repair  

 Congestion Reduction - To achieve a significant reduction in congestion on the National Highway 
System  

 System Reliability -  To improve the efficiency of the surface transportation system  

 Freight Movement and Economic Vitality - To improve the national freight network, strengthen 
the ability of rural communities to access national and international trade markets, and support 
regional economic development  

 Environmental Sustainability - To enhance the performance of the transportation system while 
protecting and enhancing the natural environment  

 Reduced Project Delivery Delays - To reduce project costs, promote jobs and the economy, and 
expedite the movement of people and goods by accelerating project completion through 
eliminating delays in the project development and delivery process, including reducing regulatory 
burdens and improving agencies’ work practices 

 
These goals provide clear asset management performance based direction to support the effective 

movement of people and goods.  Specifically, transportation asset management focuses on preservation 

of existing infrastructure with a more cost-effective and efficient approach.  SCDOT also utilizes 

transportation asset management principles to address mobility by planning for future demands on the 

system.  These actions facilitate safe and efficient movement of citizens, goods and services, thereby, 

enhancing performance of state and national commerce.   

This System Performance Report details the federally required (MAP-21/FAST Act) performance measures 

for a State DOT.  The following sections detail the performance measures, baseline and targets and the 

progress towards those targets based on the most recent Full Performance Period (FPP) that was 

submitted December 16, 2022, which is based on the first performance period (January 2018 – December 

2021) and the Baseline Performance Period (BPP) submitted December 16, 2022, which is based on the 

second performance period (January 2022 - December 2025). 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

5 
 

Highway Safety / PM-1 

Effective April 14, 2016, FHWA established the highway safety performance measures to carry out the 

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP).  Safety performance targets are developed in coordination 

with the South Carolina Department of Public Safety (SCDPS) and reported annually to FHWA in the state’s 

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) Annual Report and to the National Highway Traffic Safety 

Administration (NHTSA) in the state’s Highway Safety Plan (HSP) developed by SCDPS.  The performance 

measures are: 

1. Number of fatalities 

2. Rate of fatalities per 100 million vehicle miles traveled 

3. Number of serious injuries 

4. Rate of serious injuries per 100 million vehicle miles traveled 

5. Number of combined non-motorized fatalities and non-motorized serious injuries 

The most recently assessed safety targets were for the five-year rolling average from 2016 to 2020. South 

Carolina’s statewide safety performance targets for this time period are included in Table 1, along with 

actual performance and the state’s baseline data for the (5) five year rolling average from 2014 to 2018.  

A state is said to have met or made significant progress toward meeting its safety performance targets 

when at least (4) four of the (5) five targets established under 23 CFR 490.209(a) have been met or the 

actual outcome is better than the baseline performance.  As shown in Table 1 below, South Carolina met 

or performed better than baseline for 2 of the 5 safety targets.  SCDOT continues to implement proven 

countermeasures addressing the engineering emphasis areas identified in the State’s Strategic Highway 

Safety Plan (SHSP). For more information regarding the recently updated SHSP, please visit our website 

here:  https://www.scdot.org/performance/pdf/reports/BR1_SC_SHSP_Dec20_rotated.pdf.  In response 

to the increasing number of non-motorized user fatalities, SCDOT has developed the state’s first 

Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety Action Plan (PBSAP). It is available here:  

https://www.scdot.org/projects/pdf/SC%20Pedestrian%20and%20Bicycle%20Safety%20Action%20Plan.

pdf. For a national perspective on state’s setting and achieving safety performance targets, please visit 

FHWA’s website https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/hsip/spm/state_safety_targets/. 

Table 1.  South Carolina 2016-2020 Safety Performance Target Assessment 

PERFORMANCE MEASURE 
2016-
2020 

TARGET 

2016-
2020 

OUTCOME 

2014-2018 

BASELINE 
MET 

TARGET 
BETTER THAN 

BASELINE 

MET /MADE 

SIGNIFICANT 

PROGRESS 

Number of Traffic Fatalities 1,011.0 1,023.0 969.4 No No 

No 

Rate of Traffic Fatalities  1.819 1.836 1.802 No No 

Number of Traffic Serious Injuries 2,781.0 2,888.2 2,938.8 No Yes 

Rate of Traffic Serious Injuries  4.979 5.180 5.584 No Yes 

Number of Non-motorized Traffic 

Fatalities and Serious Injuries 
380.0 438.8 393.2 No No 

https://www.scdot.org/performance/pdf/reports/BR1_SC_SHSP_Dec20_rotated.pdf
https://www.scdot.org/projects/pdf/SC%20Pedestrian%20and%20Bicycle%20Safety%20Action%20Plan.pdf
https://www.scdot.org/projects/pdf/SC%20Pedestrian%20and%20Bicycle%20Safety%20Action%20Plan.pdf
https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/hsip/spm/state_safety_targets/


 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

6 
 

Table 2 and 3 below provides a historical look at the results of the department’s Safety Performance 

Target Assessment for 2015-2019 and 2014-2018. During the 2015-2019 assessment, South Carolina met 

1 of the 5 safety targets.   

Table 2.  South Carolina 2015-2019 Safety Performance Target Assessment 

Performance Measure 
2015-
2019 

Target 

2015-
2019 

Actual 

2013-
2017 

Baseline 

Met 
Target 

Better 
than 

Baseline 

Met or Made 
Significant 
Progress 

Number of Traffic Fatalities 988.0 1005.0 915.6 No No 

No 

Rate of Traffic Fatalities 1.790 1.818 1.752 No No 

Number of Traffic Serious Injuries 2986.0 2986.6 3108.2 No Yes 

Rate of Traffic Serious Injuries 5.420 5.412 5.986 Yes N/A 

Number of Non-motorized Traffic 
Fatalities & Serious Injuries 

380.0 414.2 382.6 No No 

 
South Carolina met 4 of the 5 safety targets in 2014-2018. During this time period, SCDOT began 

implementing the state’s Rural Road Safety Program, specifically targeting roadway departure collisions 

on rural roads.   

Table 3.  South Carolina 2014-2018 Safety Performance Target Assessment 

Performance Measure 
2014-2018 

Target 

2014-
2018 

Actual 

2012-
2016 

Baseline 

Met 
Target 

Better 
than 

Baseline 

Met or Made 
Significant 
Progress 

Number of Traffic Fatalities 970.0 969.6 890.4 Yes N/A 

YES 

Rate of Traffic Fatalities 1.810 1.804 1.748 Yes N/A 

Number of Traffic Serious 
Injuries 

3067.0 2988.4 3195.4 Yes N/A 

Rate of Traffic Serious 
Injuries 

5.708 5.590 6.304 Yes N/A 

Number of Non-motorized 
Traffic Fatalities & Serious 

Injuries 
371.3 389.8 378.8 No No 

 

 
 
 
 



 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

7 
 

Pavement and Bridge Condition / PM-2 – First Performance Period (2018-2021) 
 
Pavement and bridge performance measures are assessed and reported over a (4) four-year period with 
the first period beginning on January 1, 2018 and ending December 31, 2021.  SCDOT reported baseline 
targets to FHWA on October 1, 2018.  Mid-point (2) two-year performance targets were reported on 
October 1, 2020, and represented expected pavement and bridge conditions at the end of calendar year 
2019.  Final (4) four-year performance targets were reported on December 16, 2022, and represent 
expected pavement and bridge condition at the end of calendar year 2021.  MPOs and COGs can elect to 
establish their own targets or support the statewide targets.  The SCDOT statewide PM-2 targets for the 
first performance period are listed in Table 4.   
 

1. Percent of Interstate pavements in good condition – (4) four-year target 
2. Percent of Interstate pavements in poor condition – (4) four-year target  
3. Percent of non-Interstate NHS pavements in good condition – (2) two and (4) four year targets 
4. Percent of non-Interstate NHS pavements in poor condition – (2) two and (4) four year targets 
5. Percent of NHS bridges by deck area in good condition – (2) two and (4) four year targets 
6. Percent of NHS bridges by deck area in poor condition – (2) two and (4) four year targets 

 
Table 4 provides a summary of pavement and bridge performance measures.  The SCDOT has made 
measurable and positive progress implementing the strategic priorities of the STAMP that are key to 
aligning with SCDOT’s internal and external efforts towards achievable results.  The Ten-Year Plan is 
underway to address infrastructure needs across the state which was initiated in 2017.  The plan has seen 
progress, most notably in the pavement performance measures.  At the update of the 2021 Annual Report 
https://www.scdot.org/performance/pdf/reports/SCDOT_Annual_Report_2021.pdf?v=2  the agency is 
on target with approximately 82.5 miles of interstate widening completed or advancing to construction.  
Widening projects are currently completed on I-20 and under construction on I-85, and I-26 and are 
expected to be completed within the next performance period.  System to system interchange 
improvement projects that are moving forward include I-26/526, I-26/I-95 and I-26/I-126/I-20.  The 
system to system interchange improvement at I-85/I-385 has been completed and is operational.  To date 
approximately 5,800 lane miles of paving have been completed along with 274 bridges that are completed 
or under contract.  
 
SCDOT made significant progress from the baseline statewide Percentage of Pavements on the Interstate 
in Good Condition of 63.2% to the actual 4-year performance condition of 75.8%.  SCDOT also improved 
from the baseline statewide Percentage of Pavements on the Interstate in Poor Condition of 1.2% to the 
actual 4-year performance condition of 0.2%.  The percentage of good pavements on the Interstate 
System will only continue to improve over the next performance period as the agency works towards a 
State of Good Repair (SOGR) and additional interstate work is completed in accordance with the asset 
management principles in the STAMP.  Note that pavement metrics are reported in the federal metric of 
Full Distress + International Roughness Index (IRI) only for the 2nd Performance Period.     
 
Significant progress has been made from the baseline statewide Percentage of Pavements on the Non-
Interstate NHS System in Good Condition of 21.1% to the actual 4-year performance condition of 38.8%.  
SCDOT also improved from the baseline statewide Percentage of Pavements on the Non-Interstate NHS 
System in Poor Condition of 4.6% to the actual 4-year performance condition of 1.6%.  Over the last 5-
years the agency has spent over $419 million on paving the Non-Interstate NHS in addition to the 100% 
state funded $50 million annual program to address Rural Road Safety that improves select Non-Interstate 
NHS roadways.  The percentage of good pavements on the Non-Interstate NHS System will only continue 

https://www.scdot.org/performance/pdf/reports/SCDOT_Annual_Report_2021.pdf?v=2


 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

8 
 

to improve over the next performance period as the agency works towards a SOGR and additional paving 
is completed in accordance with the asset management principles in the STAMP. 
 
SCDOT’s Bridge Program was completely restructured in the middle of SFY 2022, focusing on regional 
mobility throughout the State.  Changes to the program are detailed in the 2022 STAMP update.  The Load 
Rating Program was completed in 2021, and based on those results the agency has implemented a 
balanced approach to bridge preservation, rehab and replacement.  The agency presented new priorities 
and a new list of prioritized bridges that blended the original bridge list with the State’s most pressing 
needs to Commission on December of 2021.   
 
SCDOT did not meet the 4-year target for statewide Percentage of deck area of Bridges on the NHS 
classified as in Good Condition of 42.7% to the actual 4-year performance condition of 38.5%.  The agency 
did meet the 4-year target of statewide Percentage of deck area of Bridges on the NHS classified as in 
Poor Condition of 6.0% to the actual 4-year performance condition of 4.3%.  In the near term although 
the percent good target was not met the agency has boosted the funding to the bridge program by $69 
million and has balanced the approach to bridge preservation, rehabilitation and replacement projects.  
Additional funding has been strategically aligned with the STAMP to achieve asset management objectives 
and rebuild and improve the bridge network as the agency works towards a SOGR.  The agency is well 
below the minimum threshold of 10% for the percentage of deck are of bridges on the NHS as classified 
in poor condition. 
 

Table 4.  SCDOT Pavement and Bridge Performance Measures 
(1st Performance Period) 

Performance Measure Baseline 
2-Year 

Condition/ 
Performance 

2-Year 
Target 

4-Year 
Condition/ 

Performance 

4-Year 
Target 

Percentage of Pavements on the 
Interstate System in Good Condition 

(Federal Metric) 
NA 63.2% NA 75.8% 71.0% 

Percentage of Pavements on the 
Interstate System in Poor Condition 

(Federal Metric) 
NA 1.2% NA 0.2% 3.0% 

Percentage of Pavements of the Non-
Interstate NHS in Good Condition (IRI) 

50.4% 54.3% NA 56.9% NA 

Percentage of Pavements of the Non-
Interstate NHS in Good Condition 

(Federal Metric) 
NA 27.4% 14.9% 38.8% 21.1% 

Percentage of Pavements of the Non-
Interstate NHS in Poor Condition (IRI) 

8.6% 8.4% NA 7.7% NA 

Percentage of Pavements of the Non-
Interstate NHS in Poor Condition 

(Federal Metric) 
NA 3.9% 4.3% 1.6% 4.6% 

Percentage of NHS Bridges Classified as 
in Good Condition 

41.1% 40.0% 42.2% 38.5% 42.7% 

Percentage of NHS Bridges Classified as 
in Poor Condition 

4.0% 4.2% 4.0% 4.3% 6.0% 



 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

9 
 

Pavement and Bridge Condition / PM-2 – Second Performance Period (2022-2025) 
 
The second year performance period began January 1, 2022 and ends December 31, 2025, with additional 
(4) four-year performance periods to follow (See Figure 1).  The new 2 and 4-year targets for the 2nd 
performance period for pavements and bridges are listed in Table 5 below.   
 
The pavement targets were developed from historical performance trends and planned investments.  The 
targets below are all reported in the federal metric of Full Distress + IRI which varies from the SCDOT 
metric of Pavement Quality Index (PQI).  The trendlines derived to project targets were validated using 
project and budget data.  The 75th percentile value was determined and used as the basis for establishing 
targets.  With the expansive amount of Interstate work taking place and replacement of Open Graded 
Friction Course (OGFC) during the 2nd performance period, the working group recommended the targets 
below.  For the Non-Interstate NHS System the agency used the same methodology described above but 
noted that the agency delegates the District Offices within each county of South Carolina to propose 
resurfacing projects causing the amount of Non-Interstate NHS versus Non-NHS projects to fluctuate from 
year to year.   
 
Bridge targets were established using historical National Bridge Inventory (NBI) data and planned 
investments.  The model was used to forecast a trendline and incorporated any projects that were let, 
forecasted to let and planned capital projects that would “move the needle” on bridge condition.  The 
established targets took into consideration on-going inspections of NHS bridge condition and underwater 
inspections that would shift bridge condition categories.  The group also expressed concern over effects 
of rising inflation costs for bridge letting over the 2nd performance period.  Gathering all available data the 
agency established the targets below in Table 5 for bridges over the next performance period.   
 

Table 5.  SCDOT Pavement and Bridge Performance Measures 
(2nd Performance Period) 

Performance Measure Baseline 
2-Year 

Condition/ 
Performance 

2-Year 
Target 

4-Year 
Condition/ 

Performance 

4-Year 
Target 

Percentage of Pavements on the 
Interstate System in Good 
Condition (Federal Metric) 

75.8%  77.0%  78.0% 

Percentage of Pavements on the 
Interstate System in Poor Condition 

(Federal Metric) 
0.2%  2.5%  2.5% 

Percentage of Pavements of the 
Non-Interstate NHS in Good 
Condition (Federal Metric) 

38.8%  36.0%  38.0% 

Percentage of Pavements of the 
Non-Interstate NHS in Poor 
Condition (Federal Metric) 

1.6%  10.0%  10.0% 

Percentage of NHS Bridges 
Classified as in Good Condition 

38.5%  35.0%  34.0% 

Percentage of NHS Bridges 
Classified as in Poor Condition 

4.3%  6.0%  6.0% 



 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

10 
 

System Performance, and Freight Movement / PM-3 - First Performance Period (2018-2021) 
 
FHWA established measures to assess the performance and reliability of the National Highway System 
and freight movement on the interstate.  These measures became effective on May 20, 2017, and are as 
follows: 
 
System Performance Measures 
 

1. Percent of person-miles on the Interstate system that are reliable – (2) two-year and (4) four-
year targets 

2. Percent of person-miles on the non-Interstate NHS that are reliable – (4) four-year targets 

 Performance measure assesses the reliability of travel time on the Interstate or non-
Interstate NHS through the Level of Travel Time Reliability (LOTTR).  It is ratio of longer 
travel times (80th percentile) to a normal travel time (50th percentile) over four time 
periods (AM peak, Mid-day, PM Peak, and weekends) which covers 6AM to 8PM each 
day.  The ratio is expressed as a percentage of the person miles traveled that are 
reliable through the sum of the number of reliable person miles traveled divided by 
the sum of total person miles traveled. 
 

Freight Movement Performance Measures 
 

3. Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR) – (2) two-year and (4) four-year targets 

 Performance measure is a ratio generated by dividing the longer travel time (95th 
percentile) by a normal travel time (50th percentile) for each segment of the interstate 
over five time periods throughout weekdays and weekends (AM Peak, Mid-day, PM 
peak, weekend and overnight).  This performance measure covers all hours of the 
day.  The TTTR’s of Interstate segments are then used to create the TTTR index for 
the entire system using a weighted aggregate calculation for the worst performing 
times of each segment. 

 
Table 6 displays the results of the performance measures and targets for system performance.  The 4-year 
condition of 95.9% outperformed the 4-year target of 90.0% for the Percent of Person Miles Traveled on 
the Interstate that are Reliable.   The number of Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) has an inverse relationship 
with reliability.  The VMT share of unreliable TMC decreased from the baseline year due to the effects of 
COVID pandemic contributing to the difference in actual and target 4-year values.  Over the first 
performance period over 82.5 miles of Interstate have been improved.  Interstate capacity widening 
projects on I-85, I-26 and I-20 are currently under construction or completed in addition to preservation 
and rehabilitation projects that contributed towards progress towards the 4-year target.  There are 
consistently unreliable sections on the Interstate System in South Carolina that are responsible for making 
4.1% of the Interstate’s unreliable, the majority of which are located in 3 MPO’s: Charleston (CHATS), 
Greenville-Pickens (GPATS) and Columbia (COATS).  Addressing these unreliable sections and pinch points 
of System to System Interchanges in these areas has been a top priority for the agency and is being 
completed through the management of the STAMP.   
 
 
 



 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

11 
 

Table 6.  System Performance Measures, and Freight (1st Performance Period) 

Performance Measure Baseline 
2-Year 

Condition/ 
Performance 

2-Year 
Target 

4-Year 
Condition/ 

Performance 

4-Year 
Target 

Percent of the Person-Miles 
Traveled on the Interstate that are 

Reliable 
94.7% 94.8% 91.0% 95.9% 90.0% 

Percent of the Person-Miles 
Traveled on the Non-Interstate 

NHS that are Reliable 
91.4% NA NA 95.0% 81.0% 

Truck Travel Time Reliability Index 
(TTTR) 

1.34 1.33 1.36 1.31 1.45 

 
 
Table 6 also displays the (4) four-year performance measure for Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR) at 
1.31, which outperformed the target of 1.45.  The SCDOT has made addressing congestion at freight 
bottlenecks a priority to improve operational efficiency and accommodate future traffic volumes.  Some 
of the bottleneck areas with projects currently under construction and/or in planning stages include: 
 

• I-20: The I-77 and Clemson Road interchanges are the respective bottleneck points along I-20 
during the AM peak hour and PM peak hour. This Corridor and Interchange improvement Project 
is complete and operational. 
 
• I-77: The primary bottleneck point along I-77 southbound is approaching the Forest Drive 
interchange in the Columbia area every Thursday in the AM peak hour, due to weekly graduation 
ceremonies of Fort Jackson. This Corridor Improvement Project is complete and operational. 
 
• I-26: In the Columbia area, bottleneck points during the PM peak hours are located at the Broad 
River Road (Exit 101). Capacity improvements are needed from Exit 101 to east of the Saluda River 
(Exit 85).  Corridor improvements are currently underway to address these issues and estimated 
to be complete in 2024. 
 
• I-26: In the Columbia area, the I-20 interchange is the primary bottleneck points during the AM 
peak hour and the I-126, I-20 and St. Andrews Road interchanges are the primary bottleneck 
points during the PM peak hour. As part of the 5-phase Carolina Crossroads Project, corridor and 
interchange improvement projects have begun and all phases are currently scheduled for 
completion by 2029. 
 
• I-26: In the Charleston area, the U.S. 52 Connector/Ashley Phosphate Road interchange and the 
merge to I-526 are the primary bottleneck points during the AM peak hour and the I-526 and 
Ashley Phosphate Road interchanges are the primary bottleneck points during the PM peak hour. 
Planning activities for the Ashley Phosphate Road Safety Improvements Project are currently 
underway for these areas.  ROW acquisition is estimated to begin in Fall 2022 with construction 
start estimated for 2023. 
 
• I-526: During the PM peak hour, the primary bottleneck along I-526 eastbound is the I-26 
interchange and the primary bottleneck points along I-526 westbound are the I-26 interchange, 



 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

12 
 

the merge from Leeds Avenue, and the Paul Cantrell Boulevard interchange. Preliminary activities 
are underway on I-526 East & West interchange and corridor improvements. Phase 1 
construction estimated to start 2023. 
 
• I-85: Corridor improvements necessary to alleviate traffic congestion, improve safety, and 
increase capacity. Widening and rehabilitation of the existing Interstate 85 beginning at mile 
marker 96 and continuing to the North Carolina state line. Corridor Improvements are currently 
in construction. 
 
• I-85: The Woodruff Road/I-385 interchange is the primary bottleneck for both directions of I-85 
during both the AM and PM peak hours. Preliminary activities are underway for the Woodruff 
Road Congestion Relief Project. Estimated construction start is to be determined. 
 
• I-385: The primary bottleneck along I-385 is the interchange with I-85. This interchange 
improvement project (as part of the 85/385 Gateway project) is complete and operational.   

 
In October 2018, the SCDOT Commission approved the Rural Interstate Freight Mobility Improvement 
Program (RIFMIP). This interstate widening program specifically targets rural sections of South Carolina’s 
interstate system with a focus on freight safety and mobility.  These projects can be found on the SCDOT 
website under “Interstate Capacity” https://www.scdot.org/inside/planning-project-prioritization-
list.aspx .  This program is in addition to the interstate widening projects planned for urban areas of the 
state.   
 

• I-26: between Columbia and Charleston (MM-125 to MM-194). Corridor Improvement Project 
construction between mile marker 184 and 194 near Charleston began in 2022. Preliminary 
activities for the remaining Corridor Improvement Project are underway. Construction 
estimated to begin in 2023. 
 
• I-26 at I-95 Interchange: in Dorchester and Orangeburg Counties (MM-172-182 and MM 69-86). 
Preliminary activities for this Corridor Improvement Project are underway. Construction 
estimated to begin in 2023. 
 
• I-95: in the Lowcountry from the Georgia State Line (MM-0 to MM-33). Preliminary activities 
for this Corridor Improvement Project are underway. Construction estimated to begin in 2024. 
 
• I-85: in the Upstate from the Georgia State Line (MM-0 to MM-19). Preliminary activities for 
this Corridor Improvement Project are underway. Construction estimated to begin in 2035. 
 
• I-77: in the Catawba Region (MM-65 to MM-77). Preliminary activities for this Corridor 
Improvement Project are underway. Construction estimated to begin in 2035. 

 
The RIFMIP was recently re-examined in 2022 based on new Transearch data and other data that was 
available to initiate planning to align with an updated 2050 horizon.  Three additional segments were 
identified for future projects which include: 
 

• I-95: from US-17 (Ridgeland North) / Exit 33 to I-26 / Exit 86 
 
• I-95: from the North Carolina State Line (MM 198.76) to Exit 170 (SC-327) 

https://www.scdot.org/inside/planning-project-prioritization-list.aspx
https://www.scdot.org/inside/planning-project-prioritization-list.aspx


 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

13 
 

 
• I-26: from I-385 / Exit 51 to SC-202 / Exit 85 

 
System Performance, and Freight Movement / PM-3 - Second Performance Period (2022-2025) 
 
For the 2nd Performance Period (2022-2025) the following targets were set in Table 7 below.  To calculate 
travel time reliability the System Performance Group in the Planning Office observed historical trends and 
created scenarios to model the future impact that construction projects would have on the effected 
segments.  Due to the impacts of COVID-19 the years of 2020 and 2021 were excluded from the data set.  
The baseline numbers below reflects the impacts of COVID-19 and the expectation is for a return to 
normal patterns of congestion which will negatively impact the performance measures.   
 
Similar to Travel Time Reliability, Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR) was also effected by COVID-19 
patterns.  The expectation is for normal congestion patterns to return which will negatively impact the 
performance measures for TTTR.  The established targets were adjusted to the 97th percentile to 
accommodate for the construction impact of interstate projects within the appropriate time frames.   
 

Table 7.  System Performance Measures, and Freight (2nd Performance Period) 

Performance Measure Baseline 
2-Year 

Condition/ 
Performance 

2-Year 
Target 

4-Year 
Condition / 

Performance 

4-Year 
Target 

Percent of the Person-Miles 
Traveled on the Interstate that are 

Reliable 
95.9%  89.1%  89.1% 

Percent of the Person-Miles 
Traveled on the Non-Interstate 

NHS that are Reliable 
95.0%  85.0%  85.0% 

Truck Travel Time Reliability Index 
(TTTR) 

1.31  1.45  1.45 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

14 
 

Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality Improvement Program / PM-3 

 
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) measures apply to MPOs that are 
within the boundaries of each U.S. Census Bureau-designated Urbanized Area (UZA) that contains a NHS 
road, has a population of more than one million, and contains any part of nonattainment or maintenance 
area for emissions.  If applicable the FHWA has established measures, which became effective on May 20, 
2017 to assess the following performance measures. 
 

1. CMAQ Only - Annual hours of peak hour excessive delay per capita (PHED) – (4) four-year 
targets 

 Peak Hour Excessive Delay (PHED) is a measurement of traffic congestion and is 
expressed as annual hours of peak hour excessive delay per capita. The threshold for 
excessive delay is based on travel time at 20 miles per hour or 60% of the posted 
speed limit travel time, whichever is greater, and is measured in 15-minute intervals 
on National Highway System (NHS) roads. Peak travel hours are defined as 6:00 to 
10:00 a.m. on weekday mornings; the weekday afternoon period is 3:00 to 7:00 p.m. 
or 4:00 to 8:00 p.m. The total excessive delay metric is weighted by vehicle volumes 
and occupancy. Thus, PHED is a measure of person-hours of delay experienced on 
NHS roads on an annual basis. 
 

2. CMAQ Only - Percent of non-single occupant vehicle travel (Non-SOV) – (2) two-year and (4) 
four-year targets 

 Non-Single Occupancy Vehicle (Non-SOV) Travel measures the percent of vehicle 
travel that occurs with more than one occupant in the vehicle. 
 

3. CMAQ Only - Cumulative two-year and four-year reduction of on-road mobile source 
emissions for CMAQ funded projects (CMAQ Emission Reduction) – (2) two-year and (4) four-
year targets 

 The On-Road Emissions Reduction measure represents the cumulative two-year and 
four-year emission reductions in kg/day for CMAQ funded projects within the 
boundaries of the planning area. 

 
Table 8 provides the System Performance Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program.  
The SCDOT worked in conjunction with NCDOT and the relative MPO to develop the (2) two-year and (4) 
four-year targets with NCDOT taking the lead on data gathering and analysis due to most of the UZA being 
located in North Carolina.  Trend lines in data have changed with the uncertainty involved with COVID-19 
and reduced travel and social distancing practices that have affected travel behavior through the 
remainder of the performance period.  Due to this uncertainty the (4) four-year target was elected to stay 
at 34.0 annual hours of Peak Hour Excessive Delay (PHED) even though the (2) two-year performance 
target was reduced. 
 
To develop the Non-Single Occupancy Vehicle (SOV) travel target a conservative approach was taken 
based on a trend analysis that was completed.  Data used for the measure was developed from the 
communizing to work data from the American Community Survey.  The data fluctuates slightly above 
21.0%.  The (2) two-year performance was slightly above the (2) two-year target, but in line with the 
trending data that was expected.   
 



 South Carolina Department of Transportation 
STAMP System Performance Report 2022 

 

15 
 

Total Emission reduction for Nitrous Oxide (NOx) and for Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) performance 
measures were less than the expected (2) two-year target due to changes in project delivery schedules 
and a series of challenges encountered by the project management team.  Six (6) of the eight (8) CMAQ 
projects in the 2020 CMAQ Performance Plan were completed with two projects expected to be 
completed in the next performance period.    
 

Table 8.  System Performance Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality Improvement Program 
(1st Performance Period) 

Performance Measure Baseline 
2-Year Condition/ 

Performance 
2-Year 
Target 

4-Year 
Condition / 

Performance 

4-Year 
Target 

Annual Hours of Peak Hour 
Excessive Delay Per Capita: 

Urbanized Area 1 
NA 14.8 NA 9.8 34.0 

Percent of Non-Single Occupancy 
Vehicle (Non-SOV) Travel: 

Urbanized Area 1 
21.7% 21.6% 21.0% 25.6% 21.0% 

Total Emission Reductions: NOx 18.800 8.290 58.670 8.290 58.730 

Total Emission Reductions: VOC 22.430 11.010 40.820 11.010 46.262 

 

Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality Improvement Program / PM-3 

 

Table 9 represents the CMAQ Program for the 2nd Performance Period (January 2022 – December 2025).  

The unified PHED and Non-SOV targets were set in conjunction with NCDOT and represent continued 

uncertainty about the lingering effects from the COVID pandemic. 

Total Emission reductions for Nitrous Oxide (NOx) and Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) represent the 

estimated reductions benefit resulting from the CMAQ projects authorized for funding in the 2022-2025 

performance period.  These benefits are highly dependent on the project type and project delivery 

schedules.   

Table 9.  System Performance Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality Improvement Program 
(2nd Performance Period) 

Performance Measure Baseline 
2-Year Condition/ 

Performance 
2-Year 
Target 

4-Year 
Condition / 

Performance 

4-Year 
Target 

Annual Hours of Peak Hour 
Excessive Delay Per Capita: 

Urbanized Area 1 
9.8  34.0  34.0 

Percent of Non-Single Occupancy 
Vehicle (Non-SOV) Travel: 

Urbanized Area 1 
25.6%  21.0%  21.0% 

Total Emission Reductions: NOx 8.290  58.670  58.963 

Total Emission Reductions: VOC 11.010  40.820  41.894 

 



 
Mayor 

Elise Partin 

Mayor Pro-Tem 
James E. Jenkins 

Council Members 
Phil Carter 
Tim  James 
Hunter Sox 

City Manager 
Tracy Hegler 

Deputy City Manager 
Jim Crosland 

Assistant City Manager 
Michael Conley 

 
 
 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1800 12th Street | PO Box 2004 | Cayce SC 29171 
P 803 796 9020 | F 803 796 9072 

caycesc.gov 

Tracy Hegler, AICP 
City Manager 
City of Cayce 
1800 12th Street 
Cayce, SC 20933 
 
February 3, 2022 

 
Reginald Simmons 
CMCOG 
236 Stoneridge Drive  
Columbia. SC 29210 
 
Re: Request for Additional Funding ‐ Julius Felder Sidewalk Project Completion 
 
The City of Cayce is in the process of completing COATS project P038442 – Julius Felder Street phase 
III sidewalk project (from Hemlock to Frink Street).  This project was estimated to cost to be paid for 
by a TAP award $156,941.00 and $39,235.00 City match.   
 
Right of way costs and increased construction costs far exceed the original award.  Estimated Right of 
Way costs are $187,220.00 with a 10% contingency.  Additionally, construction costs have risen since 
the 2019 application.  Thus, the City of Cayce is requesting additional funding to complete this project 
as scoped.  The breakdown is as follows: 
 

Right of way      $170,200.00   
10% Contingency    $17,020.00   
30% Construction Increase  $58,852.80 
 
Total Additional Needs  $246,072.80     

 
If additional local match is required for this additional funding, the City of Cayce will cover that. 
 
Thank you for your time and assistance with this request.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Tracy Hegler, AICP 
City Manager 

black
Stamp



 

JULIUS FELDER PHASE III SIDEWALK PROJECT 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Memorandum 
 
TO:   All Members of the CMCOG Transportation Subcommittee 
 
FROM:   Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director 
 
DATE:   February 2, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Feasibility Study:  Corley Mill Road Corridor 
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
The Central Midlands Council of Governments’ staff requests approval to amend the 2020 – 2027 Transportation 
Improvement Program to add $250K to conduct a feasibility analysis for the Corley Mill Road Corridor. 
   
BACKGROUND 
The Central Midlands Council of Governments and Columbia Area Transportation Study (COATS) Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (MPO) 2045 Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) serves as the comprehensive plan 
for transportation investment to support the safe and efficient movement of people and goods within the CMCOG 
region and the Columbia urbanized area through the plan horizon year of 2045.  It establishes the purpose and 
need for major projects included in the federal transportation funding program, identifies activities to address 
major transportation issues, and prioritizes investments in the transportation system.  
 
Based on this plan, a feasibility study has been requested for the Corley Mill Road Corridor.  This analysis will be 
conducted as part of the SCDOT Feasibility Report. SCDOT will devise a project development team that will 
define the project scope, goals and objectives, purpose and need, potential environmental, cultural, and social 
impacts, estimated cost, schedule, benefit/cost analysis, and risk analysis.   
 
The study will be conducted from North Lake Drive (SC 6) to Sunset Blvd (US 378) 
 
ATTACHMENT 
Study Area Map 
 
 
 
 
 
E:\Silver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Transportation Subcommittee Meetings\Calendar Year 2023 Meetings\2-9-23\Enclosure 4 - Corley Mill Road.doc 

 
Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 

236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210   (803) 376‐5390   FAX (803) 376‐5394   Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

Enclosure 4 



�

CORLEY MILL ROAD – SC 6 TO US 378 




